

PART 2 – ROAD RACES

AMENDMENTS TO REGULATION WITH EFFECT ON 01.01.2015

(the modified parts are in red)

- 2.2.12** (N) The programme - technical guide shall cover all details of organisation, and at minimum:
- the specific regulations for the event which, depending on the type of race, shall include the following:
 - mention of the fact that the race will be run under UCI regulations;
 - a statement that only the UCI scale of penalties will apply;
 - where applicable, the local anti-doping legislation which will be applicable in addition to the UCI's anti-doping regulations;
 - the class of event and the UCI points scale applicable;
 - the categories of riders;
 - the number of riders per team (maximum and minimum);
 - the opening hours of the race headquarters;
 - the venue and time for the confirmation of starters and the distribution of identification numbers;
 - the venue and time of the sports directors' meeting;
 - the exact location of race headquarters, the testing station for anti-doping tests;
 - the frequency used for radio-tour;
 - secondary classifications including all the information required (points, tie-break procedures, etc.);
 - the prizes awarded for all classifications;
 - any applicable time bonuses;
 - the finishing time limits;
 - stages with summit finishes for the purposes of article 2.6.027;
 - awards ceremony procedures;
 - the procedures for applying the times recorded during team time trial stages to individual classifications;
 - the presence of the neutral support service via motorcycle, if any;
 - feeding points, if any, during time trial events or stages and the relevant procedures;
 - the criteria used to determine the starting order of a time trial event or prologue; the criteria shall determine the order of teams; each team shall determine the starting order of its riders.
 - a description of the course or the stages with profile (profile if necessary), distances, feeding points and, where applicable, circuits;
 - obstacles on the course (tunnels, level crossings, danger points, etc.);
 - a detailed route and the schedule anticipated;
 - intermediate sprints, mountain primes and special primes;
 - the plan and the profile (profile if necessary) of the final three kilometres;
 - exact start and finish points;
 - the list of hospitals contacted by the organiser in order to receive any injured;
 - the composition of the commissaires' panel;
 - **for UCI WorldTour events, the technical delegate's contact details;**
 - the name, address and telephone number of the event director and the names of the officials
 - in races with time trial stages: whether the use of a specific time trial bicycle is prohibited for time trial stages.

(text modified on 1.01.02; 1.01.05; 1.01.07; 1.01.09; 1.01.15).

Race incidents

2.2.029 In case of an accident or incident that could impinge upon the normal conduct of a race in general or a particular stage thereof, race director may, after obtaining the agreement of the commissaires' panel and having informed the timekeepers, at any moment, decide:

- to modify the course,
 - to temporarily neutralise the race or stage,
 - to declare a stage null and void,
 - to cancel part of a stage as well as the results of any possible intermediate classifications and to restart the stage near the place of the incident,
 - to let the results stand or
 - to restart the race or stage, taking account of the gaps recorded at the moment of the incident.
- If necessary, the commissaires' panel may consult the technical delegate appointed to UCI WorldTour events by the UCI to reach a decision.

(text modified on 1.01.15)

2.2.034 bis (N) The organiser shall organise a briefing which persons following the race on a motorcycle, a representative of the television broadcaster, a representative of the police, and the commissaires' panel shall attend.

At UCI WorldTour races the briefing shall be held, in the presence of the technical delegate, the day before the race after the sports directors' meeting, or on the morning of the race.

(text modified on 1.01.06; 1.01.07; 1.01.15).

§ 6 Terms of reference for organisers

2.2.089 In addition to the regulations, the organisers of UCI WorldTour events must also respect the provisions of the terms of reference for UCI WorldTour organisers.

(article introduced on 1.01.15).

§ 7 Technical delegate

2.2.090 The technical delegate evaluates the conformity of the organisation of UCI WorldTour events with the regulations and the terms of reference for organisers.

The technical delegate may attend events in order to carry out this task. In this case, the organiser shall provide the technical delegate with a pass allowing free access to the event as well as an accreditation plate for the technical delegate's vehicle granting entry to reserved parking at the race start and finish as well as permission to drive on the event route.

(article introduced on 1.01.15).

2.2.091 For the UCI WorldTour, the technical delegate draws up a detailed evaluation report of the event, taking into account the terms of reference for organisers, using an evaluation grid provided for this purpose by the UCI administration. The organiser receives a copy of this report.

(article introduced on 1.01.15).

2.2.092 For UCI WorldTour events, the technical delegate may also conduct a prior inspection of the event route, paying particular attention to safety issues, the danger points indicated by the organiser and arrangements relating to the terms of reference for organisers.

If such an inspection is to be conducted, the technical delegate contacts the organiser and draws



up a report for the attention of the UCI administration which then takes appropriate decisions as necessary.

(article introduced on 1.01.15).

Chapter X – ELITE AND UNDER 23 MEN'S UCI WORLDTOUR WORLD CLASSIFICATION

2.10.001 The UCI has created an annual UCI ~~WorldTour~~ World classification of riders ~~teams~~ and nations taking part in ~~the men elite and men under 23 UCI events of the international calendar. of the UCI WorldTour~~. This classification is the exclusive property of the UCI.

~~Only riders being part of a UCI ProTeam obtain points in UCI WorldTour races.~~

(text modified on 1.07.10; 1.01.15)

Individual UCI World classification

2.10.002 The individual UCI World classification is a 52-week rolling classification and shall be drawn up at least once a week by adding the points won since the previous classification was established. At the same time the remaining points obtained up to the same day of the previous year shall be deducted.

If necessary, the classification for preceding weeks shall be corrected. The new classification comes into force on the day of publication and stands until the publication of the subsequent classification.

Riders score points in the individual classification in accordance with the scale in article 2.11.014. ~~fixed annually by the Management Committee.~~

Points awarded for stages are counted on the final day of the race.

~~A rider who, in the course of the year, ceases to be a member of a team which has taken part in one or more UCI WorldTour events during the year in question, shall be withdrawn from the individual ranking.~~

~~A rider who takes part in a UCI WorldTour event as a member of a national team shall not receive any points.~~

(text modified on 1.01.15)

2.10.003 Ties on points between riders shall be resolved by counting up the greatest number of 1st places, ~~2nd places, etc.~~ on the classification ~~of the races of the current year.~~ If there still is a tie, it will be resolved by the greatest number of 2nd places, then 3rd places etc. taking into account only places for which UCI ~~WorldTour~~ World ranking points are allocated.

In the event of a new tie, the highest-placed rider in the most recent race shall take precedence, whichever his placing.

In the case of a tie in the final classification, the rider with the greatest number of 1st places ~~2nd places etc.~~ on the classification of the races of the current year, ~~whichever his placing~~, shall take precedence. If there still is a tie, it will be resolved by the greatest number of 2nd places, then 3rd places etc., whichever his placing.

Concerning stage races, only the final individual general classification on time shall be taken into account for the application of this article.

(text modified on 1.01.15)

Team classification

- 2.10.004** ~~The team ranking is obtained by adding up the points obtained by the five best riders in the individual ranking.
Further, the UCI ProTeams obtain points during the UCI team time trial world championships as indicated in the points scale in the attachment of this chapter.
The ranking of teams in the event of a tie will be determined by the place of their best rider in the individual ranking.~~

Elite and under 23 men shall be listed in the same classification. In the individual UCI World classification, under 23 riders shall be identified by a distinctive mark.

(text modified on 1.07.12; 1.01.15).

UCI World Classification by nations

- 2.10.005** The UCI World classification by nation is a 52-week rolling classification. The UCI World classification by nation shall be drawn up on the basis of the points obtained by the first ~~5~~ eight riders of each nationality in the individual World classification.

The tiebreaker for equally ranked nations shall be the placing of their best-placed rider on the individual World classification.

(text modified on 1.01.15).

Updates

- 2.10.006** Classifications shall be updated each Monday by 17h00 CET. In the event that the update falls on a statutory holiday in Switzerland, the update will be made the following day. ~~the same day after the end of a UCI WorldTour one day race or after the last stage of a stage race.~~

The update shall include results received by 9h00 CET the day the update will be published. Results received after this time will be included in the next weekly update.

The rankings will take into account only 1 world championships and 1 continental championships: should one be organized later than the previous 52-weeks, the previous one will be kept in the rankings; should one be organized earlier than the previous 52-weeks, only the most recent one will be included; should one not be on the calendar for a particular season, validity for the points is 52-weeks.

Organisers or national federations must immediately notify the UCI of any facts or decisions which could result in a change to points obtained by any rider or team. Where necessary, classifications will be amended.

The final classification of 31 December will determine the winner for 2015.

(text modified on 1.07.11; 1.01.15).

Trophies and prizes

- 2.10.007** The UCI shall award a trophy to the winner of the UCI ~~WorldTour~~ World ranking and to the winning ~~team as well as the~~ nation. The UCI may award prizes to riders ~~and teams~~ according to their classification, in accordance with such criteria as it may establish.

(text modified on 1.01.15)



Scale of points for ~~UCI WorldTour~~ events on the UCI international calendar
2.10.008 ~~When necessary, s~~ Should the classification be altered, prizes and trophies already awarded shall be returned and handed over to the entitled party.

(text modified on 1.01.15)

Chapter XI – ELITE AND UNDER 23 MEN'S **UCI WORLDTOUR AND CONTINENTAL CLASSIFICATIONS**

2.11.001 For the UCI WorldTour, UCI establishes only a classification by team.

For each **continental circuit**, there shall be an individual classification, a classification by team and a classification by nations of the elite and under 23 men.

The UCI shall be the exclusive owner of these classifications.

(text modified on 1.01.15)

2.11.002 The classifications shall be established on the basis of points obtained by the riders as per the scale in article 2.11.014.

The points scored on UCI WorldTour events are not included in the classifications of the continental circuits.

(text modified on 1.01.15)

~~**2.11.003** Riders belonging to a UCI ProTeam do not take part in the continental classifications. A rider who joins a UCI ProTeam shall be withdrawn from the classifications when his contract comes into force.~~

[Article abrogated on 1.01.15]

Individual classification for continental circuits

2.11.004 Riders shall score points in the individual classification of the continent in which the event takes place. They may appear in the classifications of more than one continent.

(text modified on 1.01.15)

2.11.005 Elite and under 23 men shall be listed in the same classification. In the classification, under 23 riders shall be identified by a distinctive mark.

2.11.006 The individual classification is a 52-week rolling classification for continental circuits shall be drawn up at least once a week by adding the points won since the previous classification was established. At the same time the remaining points obtained up to the same day of the previous year shall be deducted.

Where applicable, the classification for preceding weeks shall be corrected. The new classification comes into force on the day of publication and stands until the publication of the subsequent classification.

Riders score points in the individual classification in accordance with the scale in article 2.11.014.

Points awarded for stages are counted on the final day of the race.

~~The classification shall be drawn up per season, by adding the points won from the 1st January to 31st December of the same year (1st October (15th October for the Europe Tour) until the 30th September (14th October for the Europe Tour) of the next year. The classification shall be drawn each Monday by 17h00 CET up on the 25th day of each month. Where applicable, the classification for preceding weeks months shall be corrected. The new classification shall come~~

~~into force on the 1st day of the following month and remains valid until the end of the month.~~

(text modified on 1.01.06; 1.01.15).

- 2.11.007** Ties on points between riders shall be resolved by counting up the greatest number of 1st places, ~~2nd places etc.~~ on the classification of the races run in the course of the last ~~year~~ 52 weeks. If there still is a tie, it will be resolved by the greatest number of 2nd places, then 3rd places etc taking into account only places for which the respective ~~continental~~ classification points are allocated.

In the event of a new tie, the highest-placed rider in the most recent race shall take precedence, whichever his placing.

Concerning stage races, only the final individual general classification on time shall be taken into account for the application of this article.

(text modified on 1.01.15).

Team classification

2.11.008 UCI WorldTeams

The UCI WorldTeam ranking is obtained by adding up the points scored by the team during each UCI WorldTour event. These points are equal to the points won by the three riders having scored the most points during the event (prologue, stages, half-stages, general classification, secondary classifications, wearing the race leader's jersey cumulated), following the points scale of art. 2.11.014. Further, the UCI WorldTeams obtain points during the UCI team time trial world championships as indicated in the same points scale. The UCI WorldTeam ranking is calculated per season (1st January to 31st December).

Ties between UCI WorldTeams will be resolved by counting the greatest number of team 1st places in the events of the current season. If there still is a tie, it will be resolved by the greatest number of team 2nd places, then 3rd places etc.

The UCI WorldTeam ranking will be updated after each UCI WorldTour event.

2.11.008 UCI continental and professional continental teams

bis The classification of UCI continental teams and UCI ~~continental~~ professional ~~continental~~ teams shall be ~~drawn up at least once a week~~ ~~obtained~~ by adding the points of their 8 best placed riders in the individual ~~continental~~ classification as well as points obtained in the UCI team time trial world championships ~~in the current season~~.

Ties between UCI continental teams and UCI ~~continental~~ professional ~~continental~~ teams shall be resolved by counting up the greatest number of 1st places, ~~2nd places etc.~~ on the (final general) classification (on time) of the races run in the course of the last year obtained by their best 8 riders on the individual ~~continental~~ classification. ~~If there still is a tie, it will be resolved by the greatest number of team 2nd places, then 3rd places etc.~~

(text modified on 1.07.12; 1.01.15).

Classification by nation

- 2.11.009** ~~The classification by nation is a 52-week rolling classification for continental circuits.~~ Besides a classification by nation for men elite and under 23 men, a distinct classification by nation for under 23 men shall be ~~established~~ ~~drawn up at least once a week~~. Such classifications by nation for each continent shall be obtained by adding the points of the ~~40~~ 8 best placed riders of each nation in the same continent in all the individual ~~continental~~ classifications:

- 1 the points of each rider of a given nation in the individual classification of each continent shall be totalled;

- 2 the points of the 40 8 best riders shall be added together;
- 3 the total for the 40 8 best placed riders determines the position of the nation in the classification;

(text modified on 1.01.07; 1.01.15).

2.11.010 A rider's points shall be awarded to the nation of his nationality, even if he is a licence holder of the federation of another country.

2.11.011 Ties between nations shall be resolved by counting up the greatest number of 1st places, 2nd places etc. on the (final general) classification (on time) of the races run in the course of the last 52 weeks year obtained by their best 8 40 riders on the individual continental classification.

Leader's jersey and Prizes

2.11.012 ~~The UCI shall award a leader's jersey for the individual classification. Except where article 4.3.055bis, point 6, applies, wearing the leader's jersey is compulsory in all the road races on the continent in which the rider leads the individual classification. It may not be worn in another race or on another continent.~~

The UCI shall award a trophy for the winner of the UCI WorldTour team classification. The team classification after the final UCI WorldTour event of the current season will determine the winner.

(text modified on 1.09.05; 1.01.15).

2.11.013 The management committee may award prizes to riders according to their classification, in accordance with such criteria as it may establish.

2.11.014 Points scale

General provisions

Points awarded for stages shall be recorded on the last day of the event.

For team time trial events and stages the points on the scale shall be awarded to the team. These points shall be divided equally between the riders counting for the team classification. All additional riders finishing in the same time shall receive an equal number of points to those of their classified team-mates. Calculations shall be rounded up to the highest ~~made to one hundredth of full point.~~

One-day events and stage races (final classification)

Position	Grand Tours Tour de France Giro d'Italia Vuelta a Espana	UCI WorldTour	HC	Class 1	Class 2 and Regional Games*	1.2U and 2.2U	Nations' Cup
1	1000	500	200	125	40	30	70
2	800	400	150	85	30	25	55
3	675	325	125	70	25	20	45
4	575	275	100	60	20	15	35
5	475	225	85	50	15	10	30
6	400	175	70	40	10	5	25
7	325	150	60	35	5	3	20
8	275	125	50	30	3	1	15
9	225	100	40	25	3	1	10
10	175	85	35	20	3	1	5
11	150	70	30	15			
12	125	60	25	10			
13	105	50	20	5			
14	85	40	15	5			
15	75	35	10	5			
16	70	30	5	3			
17	65	30	5	3			
18	60	30	5	3			
19	55	30	5	3			
20	50	30	5	3			
21	40	20	5	3			
22	40	20	5	3			
23	40	20	5	3			
24	40	20	5	3			
25	40	20	5	3			
26	30	20	5				
27	30	20	5				



28	30	20	5				
29	30	20	5				
30	30	20	5				
31	25	10	3				
32	25	10	3				
33	25	10	3				
34	25	10	3				
35	25	10	3				
36	25	10	3				
37	25	10	3				
38	25	10	3				
39	25	10	3				
40	25	10	3				
41	20	10					
42	20	10					
43	20	10					
44	20	10					
45	20	10					
46	20	10					
47	20	10					
48	20	10					
49	20	10					
50	20	10					
51	15	5					
52	15	5					
53	15	5					
54	15	5					
55	15	5					
56	10	3					
57	10	3					
58	10	3					
59	10	3					
60	10	3					

*The Management Committee will determine annually which Regional Games will receive points

Stages and half-stages

Position	Grand Tours Tour de France Giro d'Italia Vuelta a Espana	UCI WorldTour	HC	Class 1	Class 2	1.2U and 2.2U	Nations' Cup
1	120	60	20	14	7	3	12
2	50	25	10	5	3	1	8
3	25	10	5	3	1		4
4	15						
5	5						

Final secondary classifications (points and climber)

Position	Grand Tours Tour de France Giro d'Italia Vuelta a Espana	UCI WorldTour	HC	Class 1	Class 2	1.2U and 2.2U	Nations' Cup
1	120						
2	50						
3	25						

Wearing the race leader's jersey per stage

Position	Grand Tours Tour de France Giro d'Italia Vuelta a Espana	UCI WorldTour	HC	Class 1	Class 2	1.2U and 2.2U	Nation's Cup
1	25	10	5	3	1	1	1

National Championships

Position	Road Race	Time Trial
1	30	15
2	25	10
3	20	5
4	15	
5	10	
6	5	

Where elite and under 23 men compete in the national championships at the same event, points shall be awarded according to their position in the classification of the event.

If a national federation organises a separate event for the under 23 category, no UCI points shall be awarded for that event.

Where the title of national champion is contested at an international event, the riders, regardless of their nationality, shall be awarded the points relative to their position in the classification of that event.

Continental championships

Position	Elite Road Race	Elite Time trial	Under 23 Road Race *	Under 23 Time Trial *
1	125	70	50	25
2	85	55	40	20
3	70	40	30	15
4	60	30	20	10
5	50	25	10	5
6	40	20	5	3
7	30	15		
8	20	10		
9	10	5		
10	5	3		

* Points awarded to the under 23 category if a separate event is organised for this category.

Olympic Games and world championships

Position	Elite Road Race	Elite Time Trial	Under 23 Road Race	Under 23 Time Trial
1	600	350	225	125
2	500	250	150	85
3	400	200	125	70
4	350	150	100	60
5	300	125	85	50
6	250	100	70	40
7	200	85	60	35
8	175	70	50	30
9	150	60	40	25
10	125	50	35	20
11	100	40	30	15
12	90	30	25	10
13	80	25	20	5
14	70	20	15	3
15	60	15	10	1

16	55	10	5	
17	50	5	3	
18	45	5	1	
19	40	5	1	
20	35	5	1	
21	30			
22	25			
23	20			
24	15			
25	10			
26	5			
27	5			
28	5			
29	5			
30	5			

UCI team time trial world championships

Position	Team points
1	400
2	275
3	225
4	175
5	150
6	125
7	100
8	85
9	70
10	60

The points corresponding to the positions obtained by UCI professional continental and UCI continental teams are added to the continental team ranking in which the team scored most points.

No individual points are awarded.

(text modified on 1.10.05; 26.01.08; 1.09.12; 1.10.13; 1.05.14; 1.01.15).

CHAPTER XII - ELITE WOMEN'S CLASSIFICATION

2.12.009 One-day events and stage races (final classification)

Position	WC	Class 1	Class 2 and Regional Games*
1	120	80	40
2	100	60	30
3	85	45	16
4	70	35	12
5	60	30	10
6	50	25	8
7	40	21	6
8	35	18	3
9	30	15	2
10	25	12	1
11	20	10	
12	18	8	
13	16	6	
14	14	5	
15	12	4	
16	10	3	
17	8	2	
18	6	1	
19	4		
20	2		

*The Management Committee will determine annually which Regional Games will receive points.

Olympic Games and world championships

Position	Road race	Time trial
1	200	120 100
2	170	100 70
3	140	85 40
4	130	70 30
5	120	60 25
6	110	50 20
7	100	40 15
8	90	30 10
9	80	20 9
10	70	15 8
11	60	10 7
12	50	9 6

13	40	8 5
14	30	7 4
15	20	6 3
16	15	5
17	10	4
18	8	3
19	5	2
20	3	1

(text modified on 1.01.06; 1.01.09;1.07.12; 1.09.12; 1.10.13; 1.01.15).

2.14.021 The organiser of an event which takes place from July on, must invite ~~all~~ the ~~first 15~~ ~~20~~ nations ranked in the nations cup ~~classification published at least 60 days before the event~~ ~~of the year in question~~ and that have not taken part as a mixed team. The national teams having been ranked through a participation in a mixed team can nevertheless be selected by the organization to participate in one mixed team only.

(text modified on 1.01.08; 26.01.08; 01.01.15).

2.16.046 Riders and professional continental teams may not reveal that they are involved in negotiations about ~~the renewal of their contracts or~~ transfers outside the transfer period. Upon complaint by a prejudiced team or any third party with a legitimate interest, the rider shall be liable to a fine of CHF 2,000 and the professional continental team to a fine of CHF 5,000.

(text modified on 1.10.09; 1.07.10; 1.01.15).